

**Section I**  
**Notice of Development of Proposed Rules**  
**and Negotiated Rulemaking**

NONE

**Section II**  
**Proposed Rules**

**DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES**

**Division of Plant Industry**

| RULE NOS.: | RULE TITLES:   |
|------------|--|
| 5B-66.001  | Definitions  |
| 5B-66.002  | Purpose  |
| 5B-66.003  | Quarantine Area  |
| 5B-66.004  | Movement or Possession of Hosts or Regulated Articles; Conditions of Certification         |
| 5B-66.005  | Confiscation and Disposal of Hosts and Regulated Articles                                  |
| 5B-66.006  | Treatment Areas, Treatment Procedures, Mitigative Measures, and Declaration of Eradication |

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The purpose of this rule is to facilitate an emergency program designed to eradicate fruit flies introduced into Florida.

**SUMMARY:** This rule edit is to address quarantine movement regulations and treatment measures for exposed areas during an emergency fruit fly eradication program.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17), FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20), (26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181, FS.

**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.**

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Dr. Greg Hodges, P.O. Box 147100, Gainesville, FL, 32614, (352)395-4627, Greg.Hodges@FDACS.gov

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

5B-66.001 Definitions and Purpose.

(1) For the purpose of this rule, the definitions in section 581.011, F. S., and the following definitions shall apply:

(1) through (6) reorganized (a) through (f) No change.

(2) The purpose of this rule chapter is to establish procedures for conducting a program to eradicate Fruit flies defined in Rule 5B-66.001(2), F.A.C., upon their detection in the State of Florida. This rule chapter designates the size of quarantine areas and the requirements for the movement and certification of Hosts and Regulated articles. It also designates the size of treatment areas and the procedures for conducting treatments, outlines program mitigative measures and sets forth the requirements for declaring eradication.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17) FS. Law Implemented 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20), (26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181 FS. History—New 12-8-11,\_\_\_\_\_.

5B-66.002 Purpose.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17) FS. Law Implemented 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20), (26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181 FS. History—New 12-8-11, Repealed\_\_\_\_\_.

5B-66.003 Quarantine Area.

(1) A minimum 81-square mile area around a Ffruit fly detection shall be quarantined upon finding:

(a) Two adults within three miles (~~3.5 miles for Bactrocera~~) of each other within a life cycle; or

(b) through (d) No change.

(2) The geographical boundaries of a quarantine area shall be published in a major newspaper of general distribution in the quarantine area, provided to affected industry groups, and published on the Department’s website at <http://www.FDACS.gov> ~~freshfromflorida.com/PI~~.

(3) It shall be unlawful to move a Hhost of the Ffruit fly species detected or a Rregulated article into, within, through or from a quarantine area unless in accordance with Rule 5B-66.004, F.A.C.

(4) A list of Hhosts most likely to be present in a quarantine area shall be published in a major newspaper of general distribution in the quarantine area, provided to affected industry groups, and published on the Department’s website at <http://www.FDACS.gov> ~~freshfromflorida.com/PI~~.

(5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17) FS. Law Implemented 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20),

(26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181 FS. History–New 12-8-11, Amended \_\_\_\_\_.

5B-66.004 Movement or Possession of Hosts or Regulated Articles; Conditions of Certification.

(1) Compliance agreements. The certification of handling, processing, treatment, and moving of Hhosts and Rregulated articles may be accomplished through the use of a compliance agreement. The ~~form~~ Compliance Agreement Cooperative Fruit Fly Eradication Program Project, FDACS 08468, Rev. 05/20 05/11, and Compliance Agreement Cooperative Fruit Fly Eradication Program Project, Aerial Applicator, FDACS-08469, Rev. 05/20 05/11, are incorporated herein by reference and samples are available ~~may be obtained~~ at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>, ~~from the Division of Plant Industry, Bureau of Plant and Apiary Inspection, by writing to P. O. Box 147100, Gainesville, FL 32514 7100 or at~~ <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00748> ~~for Compliance Agreement Cooperative Fruit Fly Eradication Project, DACS 08468, Rev. 05/11, and~~ <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00749> ~~for Compliance Agreement Cooperative Fruit Fly Eradication Project, Aerial Applicator, DACS 08469, Rev. 05/11.~~

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to move any Hhosts of the Ffruit fly species or Rregulated articles within, into, through, or out of the quarantine area unless in compliance with this rule chapter and the movement practices have been certified by the Department or the USDA-APHIS-PPQ.

(3) Hhosts or Rregulated articles within a half-mile of a positive find may only be moved out of a quarantine area if processed with a post-harvest treatment (fumigation or irradiation); or application of a pre-harvest bait spray treatment and Ffruit fly trap placement 30 days prior to harvest and monitoring throughout the harvest season with negative detection within the quarantine zone, but outside of the half-mile arc results. Hhosts or Rregulated articles shall be certified by the Department for movement out of a quarantine area for commercial or distribution purposes following confirmation by the Department of either method above. After confirmation, the Department shall issue a Temporary Certificate of Inspection (FDACS-08010), Rev. 10/20 10/08, which is as incorporated herein by reference and a sample is available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. ~~in Rule 5B-2.010, F.A.C.~~ Prior to movement of Hhosts or Rregulated articles, the method of treatment and location of the treatment facility must be documented in the “Additional Declarations” section of FDACS-08010. Interstate movement of Hhosts or Rregulated articles shall be governed by 7 CFR §301.32 – Subpart – Fruit Flies (§301.32 and §301.32-1 to §301.32-10, 1-1-20 Edition ~~effective June 9,~~

2008) which is hereby incorporated herein by reference and available at ~~may be obtained from~~ [www.govinfo.gov](http://www.govinfo.gov) ~~gpo.gov~~ or <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>

<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00750>.

(4) Hhosts or Rregulated articles offered for sale or distribution within the quarantined area shall be certified only if placed under compliance by an authorized representative of the Department or USDA-APHIS-PPQ ~~has conducted an inspection~~ and certified that the following conditions have been met:

(a) The Hhosts or Rregulated articles have been received from outside the quarantine area. Vendors or shippers must have proof of origin in the form of written receipts or other documentation traveling with the Hhosts or Rregulated articles; and,

(b) The Hhosts or Rregulated articles are kept in Ffruit fly-proof screened enclosures or sealed containers, cold storage, fly-proof vehicles, or other enclosures to prevent infestation by a Ffruit fly.

(5) Hhosts or Rregulated articles transiting through the quarantine area must be covered by a fly-proof tarp screen or be in enclosed fly-proof vehicles and accompanied by proof of origin in the form of written receipt or other documentation traveling with Hhosts or Rregulated articles.

(6) Soil and plants with soil attached:

(a) Soil and plants with soil attached shall be certified for movement only if placed under compliance by an authorized representative of the Department or USDA-APHIS-PPQ ~~has conducted an inspection~~ and certified that they are not or have not been under the canopy of a Hhost plant which is bearing Hhosts or was capable of bearing Hhosts within the previous 60 days.

(b) Soil and plants with soil attached under the canopy of a plant which is ~~bearing hosts or was~~ capable of bearing Hhosts within the previous 60 days, shall be certified provided:

1. All such soil and plants with soil attached are removed to an area clear of plants ~~bearing or~~ capable of bearing Hhosts;

2. and ~~The~~ soil is treated with an EPA-registered pesticide, an Emergency Exempted product as authorized by Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), Section 18 [7 U.S.C. 136p, effective December 13, 1991], or a Special Local Need product, ~~as authorized by FIFRA, Section 24(c) [(7 U.S.C. 136 v, effective October 25, 1988)]~~ that are labeled as effective for Ffruit fly control. ~~These federal~~ ~~The sections of the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)~~ referenced above are hereby incorporated herein by reference and are available at ~~copies may be obtained from~~ [www.govinfo.gov](http://www.govinfo.gov) ~~gpo.gov~~ or <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>.

~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00751 for 7 U.S.C. 136p and http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00752 for 7 U.S.C. 136v.~~

~~3.2.~~ All treatments must be monitored by ~~conducted under the supervision of~~ an authorized representative of the Department or USDA-APHIS-PPQ or pursuant to a compliance agreement as provided in Rule subsection ~~5B-66.004(1), F.A.C.~~

(c) Plants bearing Hhosts or which were capable of bearing Hhosts within the previous 60 days, shall be certified for movement only if placed under compliance by an authorized representative of the Department or USDA-APHIS-PPQ ~~has conducted an inspection~~ and certified that all Hhosts have been removed in accordance with Rule paragraph ~~5B-66.006(1)(c), F.A.C., and that any soil attached to the Hhost is treated with an EPA-registered pesticide, an Emergency Exempted product as authorized by Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), Section 18 [7 U.S.C. 136p, effective December 13, 1991], or a Special Local Need product as authorized by FIFRA, Section 24(c) [(7 U.S.C. 136 v, effective October 25, 1988) that are labeled as effective for Ffruit fly control. These federal The sections of the ~~Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)~~ referenced above are incorporated by reference in Rule subparagraph ~~5B-664.004(6)(b)1., F.A.C.~~ All treatments must be monitored by ~~conducted under the supervision of~~ an authorized representative of the Department or USDA-APHIS-PPQ or pursuant to a compliance agreement as provided in Rule subsection ~~5B-66.004(1), F.A.C.~~~~

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17) FS. Law Implemented 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20), (26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181 FS. History—New 12-8-11, Amended .

5B-66.005 Confiscation and Disposal of Hosts and Regulated Articles.

All Hhosts or Rregulated articles offered for sale or distribution within the quarantine area that are not in compliance with Rule 5B-66.004, F.A.C., shall be considered infested and:

(1) Shall be confiscated, held, and destroyed by the Department at the expense of the vendor or person having possession of the Hhosts or Rregulated articles upon issuance of a Hold Order and Quarantine Stop Sale Notice and Hold Order, FDACS-08016, Rev. 02/15 ~~02/10~~, as incorporated in Rule 5B-65.005, F.A.C.; or

(2) Shall be voluntarily destroyed by the vendor or person having possession of the Hhosts or Rregulated articles pursuant to an Agreement fFor Treatment, Destruction, Forfeiture oOr Return of Plants and/or Plant Parts, FDACS-08029, Rev. 09/16 ~~04/08~~, as incorporated in Rule 5B-3.0038, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17) FS. Law Implemented 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20),

(26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181 FS. History—New 12-8-11, Amended .

5B-66.006 Treatment Areas, Treatment Procedures, Mitigative Measures, and Declaration of Eradication.

(1) Treatment areas and treatment procedures to eradicate a Ffruit fly infestation will be dependent on the species, life-stages and numbers of Ffruit flies detected and the geographical area affected by the Ffruit fly infestation. Treatment areas shall be treated under the direction of the Department or the USDA-APHIS-PPQ. All pesticide applications will be applied in accordance with applicable federal and state regulations, implementing mitigative measures to reduce environmental and public impact as described in Rule subsection ~~5B-66.006(4), F.A.C.~~ The Department or other parties acting in concert with the Department through a compliance agreement shall use the following treatment activities or combination thereof:

(a) Ground or aerial applications of an EPA-registered pesticide, an Emergency Exempted product as authorized by ~~Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), Section 18 [7 U.S.C. 136p, effective December 13, 1991], or a Special Local Need product as authorized by FIFRA, Section 24(c) [(7 U.S.C. 136v, effective October 25, 1988) that are labeled as effective for Ffruit fly control. These federal The sections of the ~~Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)~~ referenced above are incorporated by reference in Rule subparagraph ~~5B-66.004(6)(b)1., F.A.C.~~~~

(b) No change.

(c) The removal and disposal of all Hhosts or Regulated articles within 200 meters of a larva or gravid female detection site known or suspected to harbor any stage of the Ffruit fly species detected;

~~(d) The removal and destruction of abandoned or unwanted plants capable of bearing hosts;~~

~~(d)(e)~~ The placement of traps;

~~(e)(f)~~ The release of sterile Ffruit flies to achieve eradication.

(2) ~~Delimitation area and Treatment areas.~~ The geographical boundaries of treatment areas shall be published in a major newspaper of general distribution in the treatment area, provided to affected industry groups, and published on the Department’s website at <http://www.FDACS.gov/freshfromflorida.com/PI>.

(a) No change.

(b) When two adult Ffruit flies are detected within three miles ~~(3.5 miles for Bactrocera species)~~ of each other within a life cycle, or a single gravid female, larva, or pupa are detected, a delimitation monitoring program will be implemented in a minimum 81-square mile area around the positive site. The ~~treatment~~ area for pesticide treatments shall be a minimum 1.5-

~~mile arc established and shall be a minimum 9 square mile area around a positive site.~~

(c) If a larva is detected, in addition to ~~Rule paragraph 5B-66.006(1)(b) above,~~ the soil under the canopy of all ~~H~~host plants on the property and each adjacent property shall be drenched with an EPA-registered pesticide, an Emergency Exempted product as authorized by ~~Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), Section 18 [7 U.S.C. 136p, effective December 13, 1991], or a Special Local Need product as authorized by FIFRA, Section 24(c) [(7 U.S.C. 136 v, effective October 25, 1988)] that are labeled as effective for ~~F~~fruit fly control. ~~These federal~~ The sections of the ~~Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)~~ referenced above are incorporated by reference in ~~Rule subparagraph 5B-664.004(6)(b)†,~~ F.A.C. All ~~H~~hosts shall be removed within a ~~200 meter 660 foot~~ radius of the positive site by the Department or the USDA-APHIS-PPQ.~~

(3) No change.

(4) ~~Program~~—Mitigative Measures. The following mitigative measures will be taken to reduce public and environmental impact:

(a) Residents in treatment areas shall be notified in person or by publication in a major newspaper of general distribution in the treatment area at least 24 hours in advance of the date and time of planned pesticide treatments, notice will be provided to affected industry groups; and published on the Department’s website at <http://www.FDACS.gov> ~~freshfromflorida.com/PI~~. Notifications will be in English or other languages as necessary based on the ethnic structure of the community. The notification shall include basic information about the program, the geographical boundaries of the treatment area, treatment procedures and measures to be taken to avoid exposure and reduce damage.

(b) No change.

(c) Beekeepers in the treatment area will be notified at least 24 hours in advance of any chemical applications.

(d) through (f) No change.

(5) Declaration of Eradication. Following the completion of all treatments, eradication shall be declared when no ~~F~~fruit fly is detected after a period of a minimum of two ~~F~~fruit fly life cycles. The Department shall publish notice of the Declaration of Eradication in a major newspaper of general distribution in the quarantine area, ~~provided~~ to affected industry groups, and ~~published~~ on the Department’s website at <http://www.FDACS.gov> ~~freshfromflorida.com/PI~~.

(6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), (24), 581.031(1), (5), (7), (17) FS. Law Implemented 570.32(5), (6), 581.031(6), (7), (9), (15), (17), (20), (26), (30), 581.101, 581.161, 581.181 FS. History—New 12-8-11, Amended.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Trevor Smith, Division Director

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Nicole “Nikki” Fried, Commissioner of Agriculture

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: April 08, 2021

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: April 12, 2021

**DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

62-210.300 Permits Required

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this Notice of Proposed Rule (NOPR) is to amend Chapter 62-210, F.A.C., to update and expand the current categorical permit exemption for burning of drugs in boilers with a heat input of 250 million Btu per hour or more, to instead allow for law enforcement and other government agencies to incinerate drugs seized by law enforcement, prohibited agricultural food products, and animal carcasses in incinerators consistent with the state’s incinerator rule, Rule 62-296.401, F.A.C., and federal incinerator regulations, 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts Eb, Cb, AAAA, BBBB, CCCC, DDDD, EEEE, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The proposed revisions also include correcting a cross-reference in the permit exemption for brownfield remediation sites.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed rule amendments address Stationary Sources – General Requirements.

OTHER RULES INCORPORATING RULE 62-210.300, F.A.C.: 62-210.200, 62-210.310, 62-210.350, 62-210.360, 62-210.920, 62-212.300, 62-213.300, 62-256.300, 62-256.700, 62-296.320, 62-296.401, 62-296.406, 62-296.417, 62-296.570, 62-737.800, F.A.C.

EFFECT ON THOSE OTHER RULES: There will be no effect on other rules.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: revision of these rules will not have an adverse impact or increase regulatory costs on any entity.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 403.061, FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 403.031, 403.061, 403.087, 403.814, FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Hastings Read, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Air Resource Management, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 5500, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-2400. Telephone: (850)717-9017. E-mail: [hastings.read@floridadep.gov](mailto:hastings.read@floridadep.gov).

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

62-210.300 Permits Required.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Exemptions from Permitting. Except as otherwise provided herein, an owner or operator shall not be required to obtain an air construction permit or non-Title V air operation permit, or to use an air general permit pursuant to Rule 62-210.310, F.A.C., for any facility, emissions unit, or pollutant-emitting activity that satisfies the applicable permitting exemption criteria of paragraph 62-210.300(3)(a) or (b), F.A.C., or has been exempted from permitting pursuant to Rule 62-4.040, F.A.C. Failure of a facility, emissions unit, or activity to satisfy the exemption criteria of paragraph 62-210.300(3)(a) or (b), F.A.C., does not preclude such facility, emissions unit, or activity from being considered for exemption pursuant to Rule 62-4.040, F.A.C. Notwithstanding the above, no emissions unit or activity shall be exempt from the requirement to obtain an air construction permit or non-Title V air operation permit, or to use an air general permit pursuant to Rule 62-210.310, F.A.C., if it would be subject to any unit-specific limitation or requirement, unless compliance with such limitation or requirement is specifically listed as a condition of exemption. Furthermore, no new, reconstructed, or modified emissions unit or activity shall be exempt from the requirement to obtain an air construction permit if its emissions would contribute to a major modification or to any modification that would be a major modification but for the use, in whole or in part, of the baseline actual-to-projected actual applicability test in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. An emissions unit or pollutant-emitting activity exempt from the requirement to obtain an air construction permit shall not be exempt from the permitting requirements of Chapter 62-213, F.A.C., if it is contained within a Title V source or if its emissions, in combination with the emissions of other emission units and activities at the

facility, would cause the facility to be classified as a Title V source. Exemption from the requirement to obtain an air construction permit or non-Title V air operation permit, or to use an air general permit pursuant to Rule 62-210.310, F.A.C., does not relieve the owner or operator of a facility or emissions unit from complying with any limitation or requirement applicable to such facility or emissions unit.

(a) Categorical and Conditional Exemptions. Except as otherwise provided at subsection 62-210.300(3), F.A.C., above, the following facilities, emissions units, and pollutant-emitting activities shall be exempt from any requirement to obtain an air construction permit or non-Title V air operation permit, or to use an air general permit pursuant to Rule 62-210.310, F.A.C.

1. through 20. No change.

21. Incineration of drugs seized by law enforcement, agricultural food products that cannot be transported into the country or across state lines to prevent biocontamination, or animal carcasses may be conducted in an air-permitted incinerator regulated under 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts Cb, Eb, AAAA, BBBB, CCCC, or DDDD, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., or as follows: ~~Burning of drugs seized by law enforcement agencies in boilers with a heat input of 250 million Btu per hour or more.~~

a. A government agency may own and operate an incinerator that is designed for animal carcass disposal associated with the study, surveillance, or mitigation of animal disease spread, odor control, or related health impacts. An incinerator being used for these purposes shall be equipped with a secondary chamber to ensure complete combustion.

b. A government agency may own and operate an incinerator to dispose of drugs seized by law enforcement, agricultural food products that can not be transported into the country or across state lines to prevent biocontamination. An incinerator being used for these purposes shall be equipped with a secondary chamber to ensure complete combustion or be a cyclonic burn barrel as defined in 40 CFR 60.2875, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

c. A government agency using an incinerator under sub-subparagraphs 62-210.300(3)(a)21.a. or b., F.A.C., shall also meet the following requirements:

(I) The incinerator shall not exceed a charging rate of 300 pounds per hour of material;

(II) The owner or operator shall keep records of the amount and type of materials being combusted; and

(III) The incinerator shall comply with the opacity requirements of paragraph 62-296.401(1)(a), F.A.C.

22. through 31. No change.

32. Brownfield site remediation, as described at Rule 62-780.700 ~~62-785.700~~, F.A.C., provided that the total volatile organic compounds in the air emissions from all onsite remediation equipment shall not exceed 13.7 pounds per day.

- 33. through 36. No change.
- (b) and (c) No change.
- (4) through (7) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.087, 403.814 FS. History—Formerly 17-2.210, Amended 11-28-93, Formerly 17-210.300, Amended 11-23-94, 4-2-95, 4-18-95, 10-16-95, 1-2-96, 3-13-96, 3-21-96, 5-13-96, 8-15-96, 10-7-96, 5-20-97, 11-13-97, 2-5-98, 2-11-99, 4-16-01, 6-21-01, 7-6-05, 2-2-06, 1-10-07, 5-9-07, 3-16-08, 10-12-08, 6-29-11, 4-26-17, 7-3-18, 9-29-20,\_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Hastings Read

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Secretary Noah Valenstein

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: 04/14/2021

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: 03/17/2021

### Section III

## Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

#### DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

##### Division of Workers' Compensation

RULE NO.: 69L-7.020  
 RULE TITLE: Florida Workers' Compensation Health Care Provider Reimbursement Manual  
 NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 47 No. 24, February 5, 2021 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

69L-7.020 Florida Workers' Compensation Health Care Provider Reimbursement Manual.

- (1) through (3) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon ratification  
 ratification by the  
 Legislature

Rulemaking Authority 440.13(13)(b), 440.591 FS. Law Implemented 440.13(7), (12), (13)(b) FS. History—New 10-1-82, Amended 3-16-83, 11-6-83, 5-21-85, Formerly 38F-7.20, Amended 4-1-88, 7-20-88, 6-1-91, 4-29-92, 2-18-96, 9-1-97, 12-15-97, 9-17-98, 9-30-01, 7-7-02, Formerly 38F-7.020, 4L-7.020, Amended 12-4-03, 1-1-04, 7-4-04, 5-9-05, 9-4-05, 11-16-06, 10-18-07, 2-4-09, 7-1-16, 7-1-17,\_\_\_\_\_.

Editorial Note: Ratified by Ch. 2016-203, LOF.

The Florida Workers' Compensation Health Care Provider Reimbursement Manual (HCP RM), incorporated by reference in subsection 69L-7.020(1), is modified as follows (page references are to the previous version):

Page 6:

- In the Purpose section, “TPA” is changed to “Third-Party Administrator (TPA).”
- In the Fraud Statement section, the following is added as a second paragraph:

Any person who, knowingly and with intent to injure, defraud, or deceive any employer or worker, insurance company, or self-insured program, files a statement of medical bill containing any false or misleading information commits insurance fraud, punishable as provided in section 817.234, F.S.

- In the first sentence of the second paragraph of the Carrier Responsibilities section, “in-state and out-of-state” is deleted.
- The Health Care Provider Responsibilities section is revised to state:

A health care provider is required to meet their obligations under this Manual, regardless of any business arrangement with any entity under which medical bills are prepared, processed, or submitted to the carrier.

Reimbursement for services or procedures not listed in the Fee Schedule must be made according to an agreed upon contract price. Therefore, at the time of request for authorization, a health care provider should inform the carrier of any services or procedures that are not listed in the Fee Schedule.

- In the first paragraph of the Prior Authorization of Services section, “or a self-insured employer” is deleted.

Page 7:

In the Billing New Procedure Codes Not Listed in the Fee Schedule section, the following paragraph is deleted:

At the time of request for authorization, a health care provider should inform the carrier of any anticipated services or procedures that are not listed in the fee schedule.

Page 8:

- In the Carrier Use of Codes, Descriptors, and References section, the term “policies” is replaced with “guidelines” in the first paragraph.
- The Notice of Privacy Practices section is deleted.

Page 9:

• The Medical Records section and the Mandatory Disclosure section are deleted.

• The Billing to Carriers section now reads:

When requested by the carrier it is the responsibility of all health care providers to furnish, without charge, the following documentation:

- A complete report regarding the patient’s symptoms, findings, and plan of treatment pursuant to reporting requirements of Form DFS-F5-DWC-25 (DWC-25);
- An operative or procedural report when a surgical procedure is performed;
- A narrative report when a consultation or an independent medical examination is rendered; and
- Copies of any additional medical records.

Failure of the health care provider to submit documentation requested by the carrier may result in the billed service(s) being disallowed, adjusted, or denied for payment.

• The Copying Charges for Medical Records section now reads:

Any copying charges for medical records shall be paid pursuant to paragraph 440.13(4)(b), F.S.

• The Disclosure to Injured Workers, Employers, and Carriers section and the Injured Worker’s Requests section are deleted.

Page 10:

The Carrier’s Requests section is deleted.

Page 12:

The Codes with No MRAs section is modified to delete the second paragraph which stated: “At the time of request for authorization, a health care provider should inform the carrier of any anticipated services or procedures that do not have MRAs according to this Manual.”

Page 19:

The Consultations section is modified to delete the last paragraph which stated: “The consultant’s opinion and any services that were ordered or performed must be communicated by written report to the requesting physician or other appropriate source.”

Page 22:

The following is added as the last paragraph of the Medications via Infusion Pumps section:

Manufacturer’s Shipping and Handling will be reimbursed at the actual cost on the invoice.

Page 23:

The Non-Reimbursable Drugs and Supplies section is amended to remove “the self-insured employer or.”

Page 24:

The Reimbursable Materials and Supplies section is amended to remove, “Circle the items on any invoice that are provided specifically to the injured worker.”

Page 364:

Reimbursement allowances for certain CPT codes were corrected to “NC.”

Page 370:

The Health Care Providers Who Bill on the DWC-9 section is amended to remove the second paragraph which stated: “At the time of request for authorization, a health care provider should inform the carrier of any anticipated services or procedures that are not listed in the fee schedule.”

Page 375:

Appendix C: Medicare Payment Localities was amended to add St. Lucie and Seminole counties to “Locality 01/Locality 02” and Indian River county was reformatted in “Locality 03.”

---

## Section IV Emergency Rules

NONE

---

## Section V Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT  
Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

11B-27.00213 Temporary Employment Authorization  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on April 26, 2021, the Department of Law Enforcement, received a petition for permanent waiver of paragraph 11B-27.00213(4)(b). Petitioner

wishes to waive that portion of the rule that states: (b) The individual was previously hired on a TEA and has separated from the employing agency or discontinued training while still in good standing, and has had a break-in-service from the last employment for a minimum of four years.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL, 32302 or by telephone at (850)410-7676.

## Section VI Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

### DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

The Florida Commission on the Status of Women announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

**DATES AND TIMES:** May 6, 2021, 3:00 p.m., Executive Committee; May 12, 2021, 4:00 p.m., Public Policy Committee; May 13, 2021, 2:00 p.m., Annual Report Committee; May 13, 2021, 4:00 p.m., Full Commission; May 18, 2021, 4:00 p.m., Awards & Recognition Committee; May 19, 2021, 4:00 p.m., Women's Hall of Fame Committee; May 20, 2021, 4:00 p.m., Essay Contest Task Force; May 26, 2021, 4:00 p.m., Public Outreach Committee

**PLACE:** Please call (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation.

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** Committee Meetings

**NOTE:** In the absence of quorum, items on this agenda will be discussed as workshop, and notes will be recorded although no formal action will be taken. If you have any questions, please call (850)414-3300.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Commission on the Status of Women at the Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050, PHONE: (850)414-3300, FAX: (850)921-4131.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Florida Commission on the Status of Women at the Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050, PHONE: (850)414-3300, FAX: (850)921-4131. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Florida Commission on the Status of Women at the Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050, PHONE: (850)414-3300, FAX: (850)921-4131.

### DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Florida Transportation Commission announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** April 29, 2021, 10:00 a.m.

**PLACE:** 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The conference call has been cancelled.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: NA

For more information, you may contact: the Florida Transportation Commission at (850)414-4105.

### DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

**RULE NO.:** **RULE TITLE:**

15C-7.002 Motor Vehicle, Mobile Home and Recreational Vehicle Dealers' Records; Maintenance Requirements; Accessibility; Retention; Penalties

The Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles (FLHSMV) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** May 26, 2021, 10:00 a.m. ET

**PLACE:** Teleconference (please contact for further details)

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** In accordance with Section 320.275, Florida Statutes, the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles is meeting with motor vehicle dealer industry representatives to discuss matters related to the motor vehicle dealer industry.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jeremy Smith, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)617-3171. [jeremysmith@flhsmv.gov](mailto:jeremysmith@flhsmv.gov).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jeremy Smith at (850)617-3171. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Jeremy Smith at (850)617-3171.



**PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION**

**RULE NO:** RULE TITLE:

25-17.0021 Goals for Electric Utilities

The FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** Tuesday, May 18, 2021, 1:00 p.m.

**PLACE:** All public participation in the workshop will be by telephone. To participate in the workshop by telephone, persons must email Margo DuVal at [mduval@psc.state.fl.us](mailto:mduval@psc.state.fl.us) by Wednesday, May 12, 2021 to obtain the call-in information. The workshop will be available to view via livestream on the Commission's website at <http://www.floridapsc.com/Conferences/AudioVideoEventCoverage>.

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** To obtain further information related to the post-workshop comments that were filed in response to the January 14, 2021 staff rule development workshop in this docket.

Docket No. 20200181-EU

The contact person for this rule development workshop is: Margo DuVal, [mduval@psc.state.fl.us](mailto:mduval@psc.state.fl.us). A copy of the agenda for the workshop will be posted on the Commission's website, [www.floridapsc.com](http://www.floridapsc.com), under the Rule Development tab by April 30, 2021. One or more Commissioners may be in attendance and participate in the workshop.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this workshop should contact the Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the workshop at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard., Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 or (850)413-6770 (Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8770 Voice or 1(800)955-8771 TDD).

**REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**

North Central Florida Regional Planning Council

The North Central Florida Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** May 5, 2021, 12:00 Noon

**PLACE:** Virtual Meeting via Communications Media Technology

The meeting will be conducted via communications media technology in the following format:

**DIAL IN NUMBER:** Toll free 1(888)585-9008,  
**CONFERENCE CODE:** 568 124 316

Communications media technology facilities will be available at 2009 NW 67th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603 for persons interested in accessing the virtual meeting.

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** To conduct the regular business of the Finance Committee of the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 NW 67th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 business days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (352)955-2200. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

**REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**

Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council

The Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** May 10, 2021, 10:00 a.m.

**PLACE:** This meeting will be held via a virtual communication platform and/ or in-person at 4000 Gateway Centre Blvd. Ste. 100 Pinellas Park, Florida 33782. Persons wishing to participate in this meeting should dial: (786)635-1003. The meeting ID is: 827 8336 2227. The Passcode is: 500200. The Zoom Meeting Link is:

<https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82783362227?pwd=aUV2djJsdTlhYWm9rMmVtUWd2dVo2QT09>

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** To conduct the regular business of the Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Wren Krahl, [Wren@tbrpc.org](mailto:Wren@tbrpc.org).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 4 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Wren Krahl, [Wren@tbrpc.org](mailto:Wren@tbrpc.org).

**REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**

Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council

The Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** May 10, 2021, Immediately after TBRPC Council meeting, or 12:00 Noon – 1:00 p.m.

**PLACE:** This meeting will be held via a virtual communication platform and/ or in-person at 4000 Gateway Centre Blvd. Ste.

100 Pinellas Park, Florida 33782. Persons wishing to participate in this meeting should dial: (786)635-1003. The meeting ID is: 827 8336 2227. The Passcode is: 500200. The Zoom Meeting Link is:

<https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82783362227?pwd=aUV2djJSdThyWm9rMWtnUWd2dVo2QT09>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the TBRPC Tampa Bay Regional Resiliency Coalition Steering Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Wren Krahl, Wren@tbrpc.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 4 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Wren Krahl, Wren@tbrpc.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Wren Krahl, Wren@tbrpc.org.

FLORIDA LAND AND WATER ADJUDICATORY COMMISSION

Villages of Westport Community Development District

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

42QQ-1.002 Boundary

The Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 4, 2021, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Amendment of the District by removing 1,058.56 and adding 3.63 acres to the existing boundary.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Barbara Leighty, Office of the Governor, The Capitol, Room 1802, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0001, (850)717-9513, Barbara.Leighty@laspbs.state.fl.us.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Pilot Commissioners

The Board of Pilot Commissioners Pilotage Rate Review Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 6, 2021, 9:00 a.m. ET

PLACE: Courtyard by Marriot Stuart, 7615 SW Lost River Road, Stuart, FL 34997, (772)781-3304

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Fact-finding proceeding for the application for a pilotage rate change for the Port of Fort Pierce submitted by the Palm Beach

Harbor Pilots' Association. No Board Business will be transacted.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Pilotage Rate Review Committee, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Pilotage Rate Review Committee, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Pilotage Rate Review Committee, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Pilot Commissioners

The Board of Pilot Commissioners Pilotage Rate Review Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 6, 2021, 10:00 a.m. ET

PLACE: Courtyard by Marriot Stuart, 7615 SW Lost River Road, Stuart, FL 34997, (772)781-3304

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Fact-finding proceeding for the application for a pilotage rate change for the Port of Palm Beach submitted by the Palm Beach Harbor Pilots' Association. No Board Business will be transacted.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Pilotage Rate Review Committee, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Pilotage Rate Review Committee, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued. For more information, you may contact: Pilotage Rate Review Committee, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Drugs, Devices and Cosmetics  
The Division of Drugs, Devices and Cosmetics announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 27, 2021, 9:30 a.m.  
PLACE: Telephone Conference Call Number: 1(888)585-9008, Conference Room #948873249

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
General Business

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lavontae Warren, Division of Drugs, Devices and Cosmetics, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1047, (850)717-1800, Lavontae.Warren@myfloridalicense.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Lavontae Warren, Division of Drugs, Devices and Cosmetics, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1047, (850)717-1800, Lavontae.Warren@myfloridalicense.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Lavontae Warren, Division of Drugs, Devices and Cosmetics, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1047, (850)717-1800, Lavontae.Warren@myfloridalicense.com.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Optometry  
The Department of Health announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 7, 2021, 4:00 p.m.  
PLACE: 1(888)585-9008, 136-103-141 participant code

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
Issue: 47/81 - CORRECTION of Date/Time

This meeting will be held on May 12, 2021, 4:30 p.m.  
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://floridasoptometry.gov>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Christina.McGinnis@flhealth.gov.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Environmental Health  
The Florida Department of Health announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 12, 2021, 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. ET or until completed, whichever is first  
PLACE: Call-in phone number is 1(888)585-9008, Conference room number: 754-420-028. Your line will automatically be placed on mute, press \*2 to unmute your line to speak then \*2 to re-mute line as a courtesy. Please do not put your line on hold.

NO “WALK-IN VARIANCE” APPLICATIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED AT THESE MEETING.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
DOH Public Swimming Pool Advisory Board will review, discuss and make recommendations to the department regarding applications submitted by owners/agents for variance from the state’s public swimming pool codes.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. August Ursin, (850)901-6517, [august.ursin@flhealth.gov](mailto:august.ursin@flhealth.gov) or by writing to DOH, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin A08, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1710.

NOTE: The Agenda will not be available until a ~week prior to the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: August Ursin as listed above. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: August Ursin as listed above.

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

Division of Emergency Preparedness and Community Support  
The Department of Health, Bureau of Emergency Medical Oversight, Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Program announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, May 20, 2021, 1:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m. ET

PLACE: Via Webinar and Conference Call

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app

[https://teams.microsoft.com/dl/launcher/launcher.html?url=%2F\\_%23%2F1%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%3Ameeting\\_MDBiMWRiZjUtZTI1MC00Yzc5LTK2ZDEtMDIIMzNiMzc5MTdj%40thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontent%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%252228cd8f80-3c44-4b27-81a0-cd2b03a31b8d%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%25229eabe153-38a6-4875-a68b-2a40ab19d544%2522%257d%26anon%3Dtrue&type=meetup-join&deeplinkId=cc4af4b4-2254-4644-b4b6-e3e3895b51b6&directDl=true&msLaunch=true&enableMobilePage=true&suppressPrompt=true](https://teams.microsoft.com/dl/launcher/launcher.html?url=%2F_%23%2F1%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%3Ameeting_MDBiMWRiZjUtZTI1MC00Yzc5LTK2ZDEtMDIIMzNiMzc5MTdj%40thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontent%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%252228cd8f80-3c44-4b27-81a0-cd2b03a31b8d%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%25229eabe153-38a6-4875-a68b-2a40ab19d544%2522%257d%26anon%3Dtrue&type=meetup-join&deeplinkId=cc4af4b4-2254-4644-b4b6-e3e3895b51b6&directDl=true&msLaunch=true&enableMobilePage=true&suppressPrompt=true)

Or call in (audio only) (850)792-1375, Phone Conference ID: 482 276 098#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: BSCIP Advisory Council Public Awareness Committee Meeting

To conduct general business of the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Advisory Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ed Mills by email: [Edmund.Mills@flhealth.gov](mailto:Edmund.Mills@flhealth.gov), or by phone: (850)617-1555.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ed Mills by email: [Edmund.Mills@flhealth.gov](mailto:Edmund.Mills@flhealth.gov), or by phone: (850)617-1555. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Ed Mills by email: [Edmund.Mills@flhealth.gov](mailto:Edmund.Mills@flhealth.gov), or by phone: (850)617-1555.

Northwest Florida Area Agency on Aging  
The NORTHWEST FLORIDA AREA AGENCY ON AGING announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
DATE AND TIME: May 10, 2021, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Zoom Meeting

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: RFP Review Committee meeting to evaluate proposals and finalize recommendations for NWFLAAA Board of Directors.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Anna Dyess at [dyessa@nwflaaa.org](mailto:dyessa@nwflaaa.org).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Anna Dyess at [dyessa@nwflaaa.org](mailto:dyessa@nwflaaa.org). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Anna Dyess at [dyessa@nwflaaa.org](mailto:dyessa@nwflaaa.org).

Northwest Florida Area Agency on Aging  
The NORTHWEST FLORIDA AREA AGENCY ON AGING announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
DATE AND TIME: May 13, 2021, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: 5090 Commerce Park Circle, Pensacola, FL 32505

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: NWFLAAA Board of Directors will review and vote on the recommendations of the RFP Review Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Anna Dyess at [dyessa@nwflaaa.org](mailto:dyessa@nwflaaa.org).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

**Florida Independent Living Council**

The Florida Independent Living Council, Inc. announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, May 14, 2021, 9:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m., Funding Formula Meeting

PLACE: Join Zoom Meeting:

<https://zoom.us/j/95081336112?pwd=ZnZtNElhN0U1Z09nUFp1SDI4YlhoZz09>

Meeting ID: 950 8133 6112, Passcode: 661517  
 One tap mobile:  
 +13017158592,,95081336112#,,,,\*661517# US (Washington DC)  
 +13126266799,,95081336112#,,,,\*661517# US (Chicago)  
 Dial by your location:  
 (301)715-8592, US (Washington DC)  
 (312)626-6799, US (Chicago)  
 (929)205-6099, US (New York)  
 (253)215-8782, US (Tacoma)  
 (346)248-7799, US (Houston)  
 (669)900-6833, US (San Jose)

Meeting ID: 950 8133 6112, Passcode: 661517  
 Find your local number: <https://zoom.us/j/95081336112>  
**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:**  
 Business of the Committees or Business of the Council  
 Persons who want to be notified of such meetings may submit a request by contacting the Florida Independent Living Council, Inc., 1882 Capital Circle NE, Suite 202, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)488-5624 or Toll Free 1(877)822-1993 or email [info@floridasilc.org](mailto:info@floridasilc.org).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Independent Living Council.  
 Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, accommodations for persons with disabilities are available upon request. If you have a disability and require a reasonable accommodation to fully participate in this event, please contact Beth Meyer, PA, ADA at [beth@floridasilc.org](mailto:beth@floridasilc.org), or (850)488-5624 to discuss your accessibility needs. Please allow five business days' notification to process: last minute requests will be accepted, but may not be possible to fulfill.

---

Sunshine State One Call of Florida  
 The Sunshine State One Call of Florida, Inc., d/b/a Sunshine 811 announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
**DATE AND TIME:** Committee Meetings, Wednesday, May 12, 2021, 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.  
**PLACE:** This meeting will be held by video conference. To participate, please click on:  
 Join from the meeting link:  
<https://sunshine811.webex.com/sunshine811/j.php?MTID=me038a9453e662a62469953326a27282d>  
 Join by meeting number: Meeting number (access code): 132 460 6880  
 Meeting password: MYjUV4a3mC9  
 Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)  
 +1-415-655-0001,,1324606880## US Toll

1-844-621-3956,,1324606880## United States Toll Free  
 Join by phone: (415)655-0001 US Toll, 1(844)621-3956 United States Toll Free  
 Global call-in numbers Toll-free calling restrictions  
 Join from a video system or application:  
[1324606880@sunshine811.webex.com](mailto:1324606880@sunshine811.webex.com)  
 You can also dial 173.243.2.68 and enter your meeting number.  
 Join using Microsoft Lync or Microsoft Skype for Business:  
[1324606880.sunshine811@lync.webex.com](mailto:1324606880.sunshine811@lync.webex.com)  
 Need help? Go to: <https://help.webex.com>  
**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:**  
 Committee and Board of Directors Meetings: Purpose – Scheduled quarterly meetings.  
 A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting:  
[www.sunshine811.com/agenda](http://www.sunshine811.com/agenda)  
 For more information, you may contact: Lori Budiani, Executive Assistant: [Lori.budiani@sunshine811.com](mailto:Lori.budiani@sunshine811.com).

---

Sunshine State One Call of Florida  
 The Sunshine State One Call of Florida, Inc., d/b/a Sunshine 811 announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
**DATE AND TIME:** Annual, and Board of Directors Meetings, Thursday, May 13, 2021, 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.  
**PLACE:** This meeting will be held by video conference. To participate, please click on:  
 Join from the meeting link:  
<https://sunshine811.webex.com/sunshine811/j.php?MTID=m1d4389524313577afc40f4bb0d3a2858>  
 Join by meeting number: Meeting number (access code): 132 468 8928, Meeting password: 7gZtkBM3J9y  
 Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)  
 +1-415-655-0001,,1324688928## US Toll  
 1-844-621-3956,,1324688928## United States Toll Free  
 Join by phone: (415)655-0001 US Toll, 1(844)621-3956 United States Toll Free  
 Join from a video system or application: Dial [1324688928@sunshine811.webex.com](mailto:1324688928@sunshine811.webex.com)  
 You can also dial 173.243.2.68 and enter your meeting number.  
 Join using Microsoft Lync or Microsoft Skype for Business:  
[Dial 1324688928.sunshine811@lync.webex.com](mailto:Dial1324688928.sunshine811@lync.webex.com)  
 Need help? Go to: <https://help.webex.com>  
**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:**  
 Annual Meeting: Purpose - to elect members to the Board of Directors  
 A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting:  
[www.sunshine811.com/agenda](http://www.sunshine811.com/agenda)  
 For more information, you may contact: Lori Budiani, Executive Assistant: [lori.budiani@sunshine811.com](mailto:lori.budiani@sunshine811.com).

Concrete Masonry Education Council

The Florida Concrete Masonry Education Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 6, 2021, 9:15 a.m.

PLACE: Video-Conference Meeting - Join Microsoft Teams Meeting -- CALL-IN INFORMATION: Number: (866) 619-5581 Access Code: 955 007 528#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Business

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jim Painter, Executive Director, at: Jim@floridamasonrycouncil.org or via the Council's website: <http://www.floridamasonrycouncil.org>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jim Painter, Executive Director, at: Jim@floridamasonrycouncil.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Jim Painter, Executive Director, at: Jim@floridamasonrycouncil.org.

The Brand Advocates, Inc.

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District Six announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, May 11, 2021, 7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m.

PLACE: Miami Beach Botanical Garden, 2000 Convention Center Drive, Miami Beach, Florida 33139

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of this public hearing is to share information with the general public about the proposed improvement; its conceptual design; all alternatives under study; and the potential beneficial and adverse social, economic, and environmental impacts upon the community. The public hearing also serves as an official forum providing an opportunity for members of the public to express their opinions regarding the project. Graphics and maps will be on display for public review, and representatives from the FDOT will be available to answer questions. The environmental review, consultation, and other actions required by applicable federal environmental laws for this project are being, or have been, carried-out by FDOT pursuant to 23 United States Code (U.S.C.) § 327 and a Memorandum of

Understanding dated December 14, 2016, and executed by FHWA and FDOT.

To attend the In-Person Public Hearing: Visit [www.fdotmiamidade.com/VenetianBridgeStudy](http://www.fdotmiamidade.com/VenetianBridgeStudy) to RSVP by May 10, 2021 for planning purposes. Limited space is available. All current Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) guidelines and social distancing rules will be observed.

To attend the Virtual Public Hearing online:

Join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone by visiting this link: <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/338192325>. Participants can also dial in using their phone: (646)749-3122, Access Code: 338-192-325.

This meeting is intended to update stakeholders on the project's status and allow stakeholders to provide input on the project as the study progresses. If you require further information concerning this project or the scheduled public hearing, please contact Mr. Dat Huynh, P.E., District Planning and Environmental Administrator, at (305)470-5201 or by email at [dat.huynh@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:dat.huynh@dot.state.fl.us) or visit the project website at [www.fdotmiamidade.com/VenetianBridgeStudy](http://www.fdotmiamidade.com/VenetianBridgeStudy). We look forward to your attendance and thank you in advance for dedicating time to this project.

Nicholas Danu, P.E., Project Development Manager, Phone: (305)470-5219, Email: [Nicholas.Danu@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:Nicholas.Danu@dot.state.fl.us), Address: 1000 NW 111 Avenue, Miami, FL 33172

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact Nicholas Danu, P.E. at (305)470-5219 or in writing to FDOT, 1000 NW 111 Avenue, Miami, FL 33172 or by email at: [Nicholas.Danu@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:Nicholas.Danu@dot.state.fl.us) at least seven days prior to the Public Hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tasha Cunningham, Project Public Information Officer, Phone: (305)335-8466, Email: [Tasha@TheBrandAdvocates.com](mailto:Tasha@TheBrandAdvocates.com).

Stantec Consulting, Inc.

The Florida Department of Transportation, District Four announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, May 11, 2021, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Please use the following link to register for the Virtual Public Kickoff Meeting, <https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2196977478441276172>.

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information on how to join the webinar.

There are several options to participate during the meeting:

- Virtually/Online via computer or mobile device. If you are using a mobile device, the free "GoToMeeting" App will be

required to attend. Please allow adequate time to log-in to the meeting.

- Telephone: To join the meeting by phone, please dial (562)247-8422, Access Code: 523-668-381.

This virtual meeting will have a presentation followed by a question and comment period. Attendees can ask questions and/or make comments via the chat function and project representatives will provide answers during the meeting. Questions and comments may be submitted prior to the meeting through the registration link, project website, or by contacting the FDOT Project Manager. Project information can be viewed on the project website: [www.fdot.gov/projects/SebastianInletBridge](http://www.fdot.gov/projects/SebastianInletBridge)

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The Virtual Kickoff Meeting is being held as part of the Project Development and Environment (PD&E) Study for the SR A1A over Sebastian Inlet – Bridge Replacement. A PD&E Study is FDOT’s process to evaluate the social, economic, and environmental impacts associated with a planned transportation improvement project. The purpose of this project is to address the structural and functional deficiencies of the existing bridge and the gap in system linkage for bicyclists and pedestrians.

If you would like to review meeting documents prior to the Virtual Kickoff Meeting, they will be available on the project website May 4, 2021.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Binod Basnet, P.E., FDOT Project Manager, Florida Department of Transportation, District Four, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309, by email at [binod.basnet@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:binod.basnet@dot.state.fl.us), or by phone at (954)777-4146 or toll free at 1(866)336-8435, ext. 4146.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Binod Basnet, P.E., FDOT Project Manager by phone at (954)777-4146 or toll free at 1(866)336-8435 ext. 4146 or by email at [binod.basnet@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:binod.basnet@dot.state.fl.us). Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Binod Basnet, P.E., FDOT Project Manager, by phone at (954)777-4146 or toll free at 1(866)336-8435, ext. 4146, by email at [binod.basnet@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:binod.basnet@dot.state.fl.us), or visit the project the website at [www.fdot.gov/projects/SebastianInletBridge](http://www.fdot.gov/projects/SebastianInletBridge).

## Section VII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL  
REGULATION

Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile  
Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida has received the petition for declaratory statement from Jean Mesler. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of 718.112 as it applies to the petitioner.

1. Are unit owners who were not issued a written receipt for notice of intent ineligible to be candidates?
2. If the election is rescheduled for a later date does the July 10th deadline still stand or can self-nomination be reopened for additional unit owners to submit intent after the deadline?
3. Are the notice which the association received as of July 10th still valid for the rescheduled election or must new notices of intent be submitted each time the election is postponed and rescheduled?

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1030, (850)488-1631, [lscmhpublicrecords@myfloridalicense.com](mailto:lscmhpublicrecords@myfloridalicense.com) docket number 2021-009706.

Please refer all comments to: James Richardson, Chief Attorney, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202. Responses, motions to intervene, or requests for an agency hearing, §120.57(2), Fla. Stat., must be filed within 21 days of this notice.

## Section VIII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

**NONE**

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

**Section IX**  
**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions**  
**Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges**

NONE

**Section X**  
**Announcements and Objection Reports of**  
**the Joint Administrative Procedures**  
**Committee**

NONE

**Section XI**  
**Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and**  
**Purchasing**

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION  
 DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 MIAMI DADE COLLEGE  
 11011 S.W. 104th STREET  
 MIAMI, FL 33176-3393

Miami Dade College is seeking electronic responses to the Request for Proposal (RFP) listed below. All solicitation documents, announcements, scheduled meetings, and links will be posted on, and communicated through, the Miami Dade College BidNet Direct website: <https://www.bidnetdirect.com/florida/miamidadecollege>  
 BID NUMBER: 2021-RM1-30

BID TITLE: Customer Relationship Management (CRM) for Enrollment

Due Date: by 3:00 p.m. ET, May 26, 2021

Pre-Proposal Meeting: May 11, 2021 – Via Zoom – Link posted at: <https://www.bidnetdirect.com/florida/miamidadecollege>

Contact for this solicitation: Roman Martinez, MPA, CPPO, CPPB - [rmartin9@mdc.edu](mailto:rmartin9@mdc.edu).

If a person decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above-cited meeting, you will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to: Miami Dade College, Office of the Purchasing Director, 11011 S.W. 104 Street, Miami, FL 33176 or by calling (305)237-2402.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION  
 DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 MIAMI DADE COLLEGE  
 11011 S.W. 104th STREET  
 MIAMI, FL 33176-3393

Miami Dade College is seeking electronic responses to the Request for Proposal (RFP) listed below. All solicitation documents, announcements, scheduled meetings, and links will be posted on, and communicated through, the Miami Dade College BidNet Direct website: <https://www.bidnetdirect.com/florida/miamidadecollege>

BID NUMBER: 2021-RM-28

BID TITLE: Telecommunication Transport System Support Services

Due Date: by 1:00 p.m. ET, May 18, 2021

Contact for this solicitation: Rossella Montejo - [rmontejo@mdc.edu](mailto:rmontejo@mdc.edu).

If a person decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above-cited meeting, you will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to: Miami Dade College, Office of the Purchasing Director, 11011 S.W. 104 Street, Miami, FL 33176 or by calling (305)237-2402.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS  
 220021 Tampa Red Brick Exterior Remediation, Tampa, FL  
 STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT  
 INVITATION TO BID

Project Number and Name: 220021 Tampa Red Brick Exterior Remediation

Project Location: 2316 W. Lemon Street, Tampa, FL

General Statement of Work: All work & repairs to include tools, equipment, manpower, maintenance of traffic, permitting fees, inspection fees, 3rd party testing, temporary protection of Mechanical and Electrical equipment and utilities.

Removal & replacement of sealant at all windows and 7 exterior doors to include new counter & sill flashing, repair interior finishes damaged by moisture and tuck point all brick at all elevations. Also included will be ballistic door upgrades to Main Entry and one additional egress.

Estimated Construction Cost: \$500,000 - \$575,000

Type of Contractor: General

Date of VBS Posting: April 28, 2021

Site Visit Date: As stated on the Vendor Bid System

Bid Opening Date: As stated on the Vendor Bid System (late bids will not be accepted)



Point of Contact: Dept of Military Affairs, CFMO Contract Management (904)823-0255 or e-mail ng.fl.flarng.list.cfmo-contracting@mail.mil.

FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS PLEASE REFER TO THE MYFLORIDA.COM VENDOR BID SYSTEM AT: [http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main\\_menu](http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu).

**Section XII  
Miscellaneous**

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraph 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Wednesday, April 21, 2021 and 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 27, 2021.

| <b>Rule No.</b> | <b>File Date</b> | <b>Effective Date</b> |
|-----------------|------------------|-----------------------|
| 1-1.010         | 4/26/2021        | 5/16/2021             |
| 1-1.013         | 4/26/2021        | 5/16/2021             |
| 42SS-1.002      | 4/23/2021        | 5/13/2021             |
| 59A-3.270       | 4/27/2021        | 5/17/2021             |
| 59A-35.120      | 4/27/2021        | 5/17/2021             |
| 60Y-5.004       | 4/27/2021        | 5/17/2021             |
| 60Y-5.006       | 4/27/2021        | 5/17/2021             |
| 60Y-5.008       | 4/27/2021        | 5/17/2021             |
| 61-35.012       | 4/23/2021        | 5/13/2021             |
| 61G4-21.002     | 4/21/2021        | 5/11/2021             |
| 61G4-21.003     | 4/21/2021        | 5/11/2021             |

**LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES**

| <b>Rule No.</b> | <b>File Date</b> | <b>Effective Date</b> |
|-----------------|------------------|-----------------------|
| 60FF1-5.009     | 7/21/2016        | **/**/****            |
| 60P-1.003       | 11/5/2019        | **/**/****            |
| 60P-2.002       | 11/5/2019        | **/**/****            |
| 60P-2.003       | 11/5/2019        | **/**/****            |
| 64B8-10.003     | 12/9/2015        | **/**/****            |

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES  
FSC - Financial Institution Regulation  
Office of Financial Regulation  
NOTICE OF FILINGS  
Financial Services Commission  
Office of Financial Regulation  
April 28, 2021

Notice is hereby given that the Office of Financial Regulation, Division of Financial Institutions, has received the following application. Comments may be submitted to the Division Director, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0371, for inclusion in the official record without requesting a hearing. However, pursuant to provisions specified in Chapter 69U-105, Florida Administrative Code, any person may request a public hearing by filing a petition with the Agency Clerk as follows:

|   |    |  |
|---|----|--|
| By Mail or Facsimile<br>Agency Clerk<br>Office of Financial Regulation<br>P.O. Box 8050<br>Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050<br>Building, Suite 118<br>Phone: (850)410-9889<br>Fax: (850)410-9663<br>32399-0379 | OR | By Hand Delivery<br>Agency Clerk<br>Office of Financial Regulation<br>General Counsel’s Office<br>The Fletcher<br>101 East Gaines Street<br>Tallahassee, Florida<br>32399-0379 |
|---|----|--|

Phone: (850)410-9889

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the Agency Clerk no later than seven (7) days prior to the filing deadline or proceeding, at the Office of Financial Regulation, The Fletcher Building, Suite 118, 101 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0379, Phone: (850)410-9889, or by Email: [agency.clerk@flofr.com](mailto:agency.clerk@flofr.com).

The Petition must be received by the Clerk within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice (by 5:00 P.M., May 19, 2021):

**APPLICATION FOR A QUALIFIED LIMITED SERVICE AFFILIATE**

Applicant and Location: Trident Corporate Services, Inc., 1395 Brickell Avenue, Suite 730, Miami, Florida, 33131  
Received: April 22, 2021

Distribution: (Publication Not Required)

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Atlanta, GA  
 Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta, Atlanta, GA  
 Comptroller of the Currency, Atlanta, GA  
 Florida Bankers Association, Tallahassee, FL  
 Raquel Rodriguez  
 William Berg

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Division of Community Development

Notice of Application Period to Administer the Black Business Loan Program

The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) announces the opening of the Black Business Loan Program Application Period for Fiscal Year 2021 – 2022 from May 1, 2021 through June 1, 2021.

Applicants must submit all required information noted in Section 288.7102, Florida Statutes, and chapter 73C-1, Florida Administrative Code to DEO by June 1, 2020. If you are certified as an Administrator of the program, you may be subject to Executive Order Number 20-44.

Please contact Christa Harris for any submission information or instructions via email at [christa.harris@deo.myflorida.com](mailto:christa.harris@deo.myflorida.com) or at (850)717-8991. Please visit the Florida Administrative Code, chapter 73C-1 or [click here](#) for detailed application instructions.

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Division of Workforce Services

DEO Emergency Order 21-05

STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

EMERGENCY ORDER 21-015

WHEREAS, the Governor issued Executive Order 20-52 on March 9, 2020, pursuant to the authority vested in him by Article IV, Section 1(a) of the Florida Constitution, the State Emergency Management Act, section 252.31, Florida Statutes, et al., as amended, and all other applicable laws, and declared a state of emergency for the State of Florida as a result of the Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); and

WHEREAS, the Governor, in Executive Order Number 20-52, authorized each State agency to suspend the provisions of any regulatory statute of that agency, if strict compliance with that statute would in any way prevent, hinder, or delay necessary action in coping with this emergency; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Economic Opportunity executed Emergency Orders 20-011, 20-014, 20-016, 20-019, 20-020, 20-024, 20-026, 20-028, 20-034, 20-040, 20-055, 20-060, and 21-005, each of which suspended for various durations certain provisions of regulatory statutes related to the online work registration requirement of paragraph 443.091(1)(b), Florida Statutes; the “actively seeking work” requirement of

paragraph 443.091(1)(d), Florida Statutes; the licensure requirement for Appeals Referees in subparagraph 443.151(4)(a)2., Florida Statutes; the purchasing requirements of section 287.057, Florida Statutes; and the “waiting week” requirement of section 443.091(1)(f), Florida Statutes; all of which may prevent, hinder, or delay necessary actions to assist Florida’s Reemployment Assistance Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, DANE EAGLE, Director of the Department of Economic Opportunity, pursuant to the authority granted by Executive Order No. 20-52, as extended, find the timely execution of the mitigation, response, and recovery aspects of the State’s emergency management plan, as it relates to COVID-19, is negatively impacted by the application of certain regulatory statutes related to the Department of Economic Opportunity (“the Department”).

Therefore, I order the following:

1. The online work registration requirement in section 443.091(1)(b), Florida Statutes, is hereby suspended. This paragraph shall remain in effect through May 29, 2021, and the suspension is retroactive to April 24, 2021.
2. The “actively seeking work” requirement in section 443.091(1)(d), Florida Statutes, is hereby suspended. This paragraph shall remain in effect through May 29, 2021, and the suspension is retroactive to April 24, 2021.
3. The requirement for each Appeals Referee appointed by the Department to be an attorney in good standing with The Florida Bar or be successfully admitted to The Florida Bar within eight months of employment in section 443.151(4)(a)2., Florida Statutes, is hereby suspended. This paragraph shall remain in effect through June 27, 2021.
4. The requirements of section 287.057, Florida Statutes, applicable to the Department for purposes of making purchases necessary to address the increase in reemployment assistance claims, are hereby suspended. This paragraph shall remain in effect through June 27, 2021.
5. The “waiting week” requirement of paragraph 443.091(1)(f), Florida Statutes, is hereby suspended. This paragraph shall remain in effect through June 26, 2021, and the suspension is retroactive to April 24, 2021.
6. This Order shall take effect on the date of filing.
7. Nothing herein shall be construed to effect or implicate any other requirements under federal law.

Executed this 26th day of April, 2021, in Tallahassee, Leon County, Florida.

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

/s/Dane Eagle, Dane Eagle, Director, Department of Economic Opportunity

Filed on this 26th day of April, 2021, with the designated Agency Clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.

/s/Janay Lovett, Agency Clerk

Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District  
BABCOCK RANCH COMMUNITY INDEPENDENT  
SPECIAL DISTRICT  
BABCOCK RANCH COMMUNITY INDEPENDENT  
SPECIAL DISTRICT  
NOTICE OF RULEMAKING FOR WATER UTILITY  
RATES

A public hearing will be conducted by the Babcock Ranch Community Independent Special District (“District”) on May 27, 2021, 1:00 p.m. at The Hive, 42891 Lake Babcock Drive, Room 211, Babcock Ranch, Florida 33982. The public hearing will be a rulemaking hearing and will provide an opportunity for the public to address proposed rules that set policies, fees and charges related to the District’s water utility. The purpose and effect of the proposed rules is to provide for efficient and effective District operations, and to provide sufficient revenues to meet expenses and provide services within the boundaries of the District. Prior notice of rule development for the rulemaking hearing was published in the Florida Administrative Register on April 27, 2021. The proposed rules remove Raw Water base facility and commodity charges and recognizes existing uses within the District at the time of establishment of the District and Utility System that are not required to connect to the Utility System.

Specific legal authority for the rules includes section 120.054, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2007-306, Laws of Florida, as amended. Any person who wishes to provide the District with a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative as provided by subsection 120.541(1), Florida Statutes, must do so in writing within twenty-one (21) days after publication of this notice.

IT IS ANTICIPATED THAT A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE, AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: May 27, 2021, 1:00 p.m.  
PLACE: The Hive, 42891 Lake Babcock Drive, Room 211, Babcock Ranch, Florida 33982

The public hearing may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified on the record at the hearing. If anyone chooses to appeal any decision of the Board with respect to any matter considered at the public hearing, such person will need a record of the proceedings and should accordingly ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which includes the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. At the hearing, one or more Supervisors may participate in the public hearing by telephone. Any person requiring special accommodations at the hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the District Office at (561)571-0010 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1(800)955-8770, for aid in contacting the District

Office. A copy of the proposed rules may be obtained by contacting the District Manager, Craig Wrathell, at 2300 Glades Road, Suite 410w, Boca Raton, Florida 33431, (561)571-0010 or by visiting the District’s website at <http://www.babcockranchcommunityisd.com/>.  
Craig Wrathell, Manager

---

Section XIII  
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding  
Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.

---